
· · · BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF UTAH

_______________________________________________________

· In the Matter of the· · · · )· ·Docket No. 15-041-02
· Formal Complaint of Wyndee· )
· Hansen dba Hole N' The· · · )· ·HEARING
· Rock Inc. v. Frontier· · · ·)
· Communications· · · · · · · )
_______________________________________________________

· · · · · · · · · · ·March 17, 2016
· · · · · · · · · · · · 9:00 a.m.

· · · · · Location:· Public Service Commission
· · · · · · · 160 East 300 couth, 4th Floor
· · · · · · · · Salt Lake City, UT· 84111
· · · · · · · · · · ·(801) 530-6769
· · · · · · · · · Job Number: 295520
· · · · · ·Reporter:· Teri Hansen Cronenwett
·Certified Realtime Reporter, Registered Merit Reporter

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 2
· · · · · · · · · A P P E A R A N C E S

For the Complainant:· · ·Wyndee Hansen

For Frontier· · · · · · ·George Baker Thomson, Jr.
Communications:· · · · · Associate General Counsel
· · · · · · · · · · · · ·Frontier Communications
· · · · · · · · · · · · ·1800 41st St., N-100
· · · · · · · · · · · · ·Everett, WA· 98203
· · · · · · · · · · · · ·george.thomson@ftr.com
· · · · · · · · · · · · ·425-261-5844

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 3
·1· ·March 17, 2016· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·9:00 a.m.

·2· · · · · · · · · · ·P R O C E E D I N G S

·3· · · · · · ·JUDGE JOHNSON:· For the record today is

·4· ·Thursday, March 17th, 2016.· It's nine o'clock in the

·5· ·morning.· This is the date and time set for the informal

·6· ·hearing In the Matter of the Formal Complaint of Wyndee

·7· ·Hansen, doing business as Hole N' The Rock Incorporated,

·8· ·against Frontier Communications.· This is Docket No.

·9· ·15-041-02.

10· · · · · · ·As I stated in the hearing notice, the purpose

11· ·of this hearing is to take evidence as to a reasonable

12· ·completion deadline that can then be reduced to an

13· ·order.· So I think we should just get right to that, and

14· ·I think that Frontier is likely the party that has the

15· ·information that will be helpful.

16· · · · · · ·So if it's all right, Ms. Hansen, usually the

17· ·complainant goes first.· But I think I understand what

18· ·your complaint is, and I think that you don't probably

19· ·have a lot of information as to what would be a

20· ·reasonable deadline for completion.

21· · · · · · ·MS. HANSEN:· I don't at this point.

22· · · · · · ·JUDGE JOHNSON:· Okay.· So I thought we'd maybe

23· ·just turn it to Frontier and see where we get.

24· · · · · · ·MS. HANSEN:· Thank you, your Honor.· My name

25· ·is George Thompson.· I am in-house counsel to Frontier.
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·1· ·With me today is Kirk Lee.· He's our regulatory and

·2· ·government affairs manager for, among other states,

·3· ·Utah.

·4· · · · · · ·JUDGE JOHNSON:· Okay.

·5· · · · · · ·MR. THOMSON:· In response to your question,

·6· ·your Honor, I think that Frontier believes that the

·7· ·pleading we filed on the 29th of February contains the

·8· ·timeline with a completion date of mid April that we're

·9· ·comfortable with signing up for, and that we have had a

10· ·number of things going on, including fiber splicing, as

11· ·recently as last night.

12· · · · · · ·JUDGE JOHNSON:· Uh-huh.

13· · · · · · ·MR. THOMSON:· At the site.· So we also have

14· ·the area general manager with us today and some of our

15· ·engineers, who can speak to details.· But I think we're

16· ·comfortable with the pleading we filed on the 29th and

17· ·the timeline we laid out therein.

18· · · · · · ·JUDGE JOHNSON:· So you are proposing April

19· ·15th, basically one month?

20· · · · · · ·MR. THOMSON:· Yes, your Honor.

21· · · · · · ·JUDGE JOHNSON:· Not quite one month from

22· ·today.· So I am confused, and I think the commission

23· ·shares my confusion, as to why this project has taken so

24· ·long, particularly where in December you represented

25· ·January 31st as being a date certain for completion.
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·1· · · · · · ·And there appears to be some inconsistencies

·2· ·in the record as to why you would make that

·3· ·representation in December when apparently the project

·4· ·hadn't been approved for budget, nothing had been

·5· ·ordered, and there have been complications with the

·6· ·things that you did order.· Can you please speak to

·7· ·that.

·8· · · · · · ·MR. THOMSON:· Yes, your Honor.· I think the --

·9· ·the longest pole in the tent, if you will, was the, the

10· ·cabinet.· We found out that the cabinet had been a

11· ·manufacturer discontinued item when we ordered it, and

12· ·that was not clear in our procurement records or

13· ·anywhere internally that the manufacturer had

14· ·discontinued the cabinet.

15· · · · · · ·So it's my understanding that that was the

16· ·primary holdup, that we had to order a number of --

17· ·well, we tried to order the original cabinet.· We got

18· ·the information the cabinet was not available.· It had

19· ·been manufacturer discontinued, and then we had to

20· ·redesign the project in order to accommodate the new

21· ·cabinet that we ordered.

22· · · · · · ·JUDGE JOHNSON:· Well, let me rephrase my

23· ·question.· My question is that previously you

24· ·represented to the commission a date certain completion

25· ·deadline but apparently had not done what you needed to
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·1· ·do in order to make good on that representation.· My

·2· ·question is, have you done what you need to do to finish

·3· ·this project by April 15th?

·4· · · · · · ·MR. THOMSON:· Yes.

·5· · · · · · ·JUDGE JOHNSON:· Or are we going to be back

·6· ·here in a month?

·7· · · · · · ·MR. THOMSON:· No, your Honor, we're not going

·8· ·to be back here in a month.· And we have the equipment

·9· ·in hand, and as I said, we have been doing work as late

10· ·as yesterday to get the job in hand.· We have all the

11· ·parts and all the equipment now and are proceeding with

12· ·the construction of the project.

13· · · · · · ·JUDGE JOHNSON:· Okay.· So between now and

14· ·then, we're going to have spring break, which I imagine

15· ·will involve quite a bit of tourism to the Moab area and

16· ·quite a bit of business to Hole N' The Rock.· I need to

17· ·be assured that Ms. Hansen can process her credit card

18· ·transactions between now and the date that you have

19· ·planned to complete this.

20· · · · · · ·MR. THOMSON:· It's my understanding, your

21· ·Honor, that Ms. Hansen's lines are up and operating.

22· ·It's not a case of where we're going to have to

23· ·interrupt her service, other than outside of business

24· ·hours, to do fiber splicing, which was done last night.

25· · · · · · ·JUDGE JOHNSON:· Uh-huh.· Do you have service
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·1· ·today?· Do you know?

·2· · · · · · ·MS. HANSEN:· I have service intermittently.

·3· ·That's been the problem for the last three years.

·4· · · · · · ·JUDGE JOHNSON:· Uh-huh.

·5· · · · · · ·MS. HANSEN:· There's been -- when these guys

·6· ·say anecdotal problem, static, blah, blah, blah.· I have

·7· ·service.· But it's so -- it breaks up.· Like, you will

·8· ·run a credit card, and then it will drop the line, and

·9· ·this was my PR nightmare.· One week it happened every

10· ·day, and we had hundreds of cards that were doubly

11· ·captured in the merchant because the phones kept

12· ·clicking.

13· · · · · · ·There's static or -- you can't talk on the

14· ·phones.· I have been cut off from phone calls, and then

15· ·it will work five minutes later.· That's what I am

16· ·dealing with over the last three years is just a static

17· ·inconsistence.

18· · · · · · ·JUDGE JOHNSON:· Right.· And I think that's the

19· ·commission's concern is that this seems to have been

20· ·going on for a long time.

21· · · · · · ·MS. HANSEN:· Since 2013.

22· · · · · · ·JUDGE JOHNSON:· And while the cable might be

23· ·the final solution --

24· · · · · · ·MS. HANSEN:· Uh-huh.

25· · · · · · ·JUDGE JOHNSON:· -- Ms. Hansen needs reliable
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·1· ·service consistently now.

·2· · · · · · ·MS. HANSEN:· I believe in the informal, the

·3· ·previous two informal complaints, I submitted copies of

·4· ·e-mails I kept in records from 2013, 2014.· I have all

·5· ·the names of the guys that promised me, you will be

·6· ·hooked up to fiber tomorrow, tomorrow.· This is 2013,

·7· ·'14.· Why wasn't that cabinet ordered then?

·8· · · · · · ·But they came out, and in the pictures they

·9· ·put out a new box back in 2014, said this is going to

10· ·be -- that old box is going to go away.· They ran a

11· ·cable, jerry rigged a cable and sent pictures.· It's

12· ·there.· It's been sitting there since 2014, some cable

13· ·going out at my south gate.

14· · · · · · ·Kids can hang on it.· But I never got hooked

15· ·up.· But then I had stopped complaining and all that,

16· ·and so they never completed the hookup in 2014 when they

17· ·told you they would in 2014.

18· · · · · · ·JUDGE JOHNSON:· We have had many broken

19· ·promises, there's no question about that, here.· My

20· ·question is, how is Frontier going to ensure that she

21· ·has reliable service from this date forward?

22· · · · · · ·MR. THOMSON:· Your Honor, it's my

23· ·understanding that the cable that ran from Moab

24· ·previously had been a copper cable.· That was an old

25· ·cable, perhaps 40 years old, and had issues.· That cable
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·1· ·has been replaced, to my understanding, with fiber at

·2· ·this point.

·3· · · · · · ·MR. HEALEY:· Correct.

·4· · · · · · ·MR. THOMSON:· And so the -- those issues

·5· ·should be resolved, and the remaining work to be done is

·6· ·the work at Ms. Hansen's establishment.

·7· · · · · · ·MS. HANSEN:· So why do I keep having -- why do

·8· ·I keep having -- as of three days ago, I am on a very

·9· ·important phone call and I get cut off.· And it's like I

10· ·literally -- it's my accountant I call him back.· He

11· ·says, "Are you still having those phone problems,

12· ·Wyndee?"· I mean, it's just like --

13· · · · · · ·JUDGE JOHNSON:· So three days ago you were on

14· ·a call.

15· · · · · · ·MS. HANSEN:· On a call and it got dropped.

16· · · · · · ·JUDGE JOHNSON:· So if that problem has been

17· ·resolved with the new cable, why are we still having

18· ·service issues?

19· · · · · · ·MR. THOMSON:· I can't answer that, your Honor.

20· · · · · · ·JUDGE JOHNSON:· Is there anyone here who can?

21· · · · · · ·VOICE:· I mean, I have been in contact

22· ·with you several times.

23· · · · · · ·COURT REPORTER:· Tell me your name.

24· · · · · · ·JUDGE JOHNSON:· Just a moment.· What's your

25· ·name?
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·1· · · · · · ·MS. HANSEN:· Are you Mike?

·2· · · · · · ·MR. GILES:· Mike Giles.

·3· · · · · · ·MS. HANSEN:· Nice to meet you face-to-face.

·4· ·You have been very helpful.

·5· · · · · · ·JUDGE JOHNSON:· It's Mike Giles.

·6· · · · · · ·MR. GILES:· Yes.

·7· · · · · · ·JUDGE JOHNSON:· Is that right?· Okay.

·8· · · · · · ·MR. GILES:· I am the general manager for

·9· ·Frontier, so I have been in contact with Wyndee.· But

10· ·that's a question we haven't resolved yet.· And I don't

11· ·know if the new equipment will take care of that.

12· ·It's -- a lot depends on -- like cut-off calls can

13· ·happen for lots of different reasons.

14· · · · · · ·MS. HANSEN:· Well, and it was my understanding

15· ·over the years from different people, not just you, but

16· ·other techs that told me that what has happened is,

17· ·yeah, they might have put that new copper line in.· But

18· ·from my place all the way to Monticello it's still in

19· ·the ground.· They have not taken it up.

20· · · · · · ·And so we have a power outage.· Just like the

21· ·other night when I put, on January 31st, and I couldn't

22· ·even call out.· They have to go trace.· The techs have

23· ·to go trace where it is between my place and Monticello,

24· ·something in the lines down below.· It's not -- and that

25· ·was from the techs telling me this.
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·1· · · · · · ·I do -- I know some of the techs there.· It's

·2· ·a small town personally, and they are just like -- they

·3· ·get tired of my phone calls too.· They see me in town,

·4· ·and they turn the other way.· I don't blame them.· This

·5· ·is like, Wyndee.· You know, it's gotten to be a joke.  I

·6· ·don't know what the problem is.· I just know there needs

·7· ·to be a fix.

·8· · · · · · ·MR. GILES:· There will be backup power put in

·9· ·with this as well so that any of the power problems that

10· ·you have that shuts the lines down will be fixed as

11· ·well.

12· · · · · · ·MS. HANSEN:· Well, that would be great.· You

13· ·know, I just want service.· I know I pay my bill every

14· ·month.· If I didn't, I wouldn't --

15· · · · · · ·JUDGE JOHNSON:· You are entitled to service.

16· ·The rules and the statutes require that the company

17· ·provide reliable service as long as you are in their

18· ·service area.· And I think the record is clear that you

19· ·have not had particularly reliable service for quite

20· ·some time, and the commission is concerned about that.

21· · · · · · ·And while I -- as I said before, fiber might

22· ·be the ultimate fix, you are required to provide

23· ·reliable service at all times, and so I need to know if

24· ·you have a plan for that.

25· · · · · · ·MR. THOMSON:· Your Honor, to the best of our
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·1· ·knowledge, we believe that the project that's ongoing

·2· ·right now will resolve some of these issues.· Now, I

·3· ·don't know what inside wiring or equipment Ms. Hansen

·4· ·has in her establishment.

·5· · · · · · ·So if the -- if this equipment is, for

·6· ·instance, a wireless phone unit that you can walk around

·7· ·the house with, that has a base station in the kitchen

·8· ·or wherever, intermittent power issues would affect that

·9· ·and would knock that call out.

10· · · · · · ·JUDGE JOHNSON:· So is that what you have --

11· · · · · · ·MS. HANSEN:· No.

12· · · · · · ·JUDGE JOHNSON:· -- wireless phone?

13· · · · · · ·MS. HANSEN:· When our lines -- I have got

14· ·three gift shops and a residence and everything.· They,

15· ·all the lines get -- when the power is out, it's out

16· ·even to my neighbors.· I got five houses behind me.· The

17· ·rest area is out.· Nobody out there can call during a

18· ·storm or nothing.

19· · · · · · ·I mean, the rest area, I get people come in.

20· ·Because we are in a dead zone, absolutely no cell phone

21· ·service.· People come in a couple times a day.· They are

22· ·broke up down -- down up the road or they will come in,

23· ·"Do you have a land line?· I can't --" you know.· Or can

24· ·we dial in onto your Internet?· Because I have Internet

25· ·because of Hughes net.
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·1· · · · · · ·Well, of course I can't give them that because

·2· ·I only get so many gigabytes, and I'm not going to share

·3· ·it with the public.· But I am just saying that I -- it's

·4· ·a dead zone.

·5· · · · · · ·JUDGE JOHNSON:· For cell use.

·6· · · · · · ·MS. HANSEN:· For cell.· Yeah.· You can't --

·7· ·when I have an outage, I have to jump in the truck.  I

·8· ·have to go to the top of Blue Hill, a mile and a half

·9· ·away, and call Frontier because I have no phones.

10· · · · · · ·JUDGE JOHNSON:· Okay.· Are you satisfied with

11· ·an April 15th completion deadline, provided that the

12· ·company maintains your current service reliably in the

13· ·interim?

14· · · · · · ·MS. HANSEN:· Okay.· I am -- you know what?· If

15· ·I -- they have had so many deadlines.

16· · · · · · ·JUDGE JOHNSON:· I know.

17· · · · · · ·MS. HANSEN:· I'm sorry.

18· · · · · · ·JUDGE JOHNSON:· But here is the difference

19· ·with this one.· If the commission orders the company to

20· ·complete it by a certain time and the company fails to

21· ·do so, they are in violation of the order, which means

22· ·the commission can impose per-day penalties for the

23· ·violation.

24· · · · · · ·At this point, until we reduce a deadline to

25· ·an order, the only remedy the commission can order is
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·1· ·service credits to you.· So that's why we are here

·2· ·today.· We are here to up the stakes and to put a

·3· ·deadline into an order, and if the company misses this

·4· ·deadline, they can be fined 500 to 2,000, I believe,

·5· ·dollars per day for missing the deadline.

·6· · · · · · ·So that's why we are here.· We are getting

·7· ·serious, and the company has represented April 15th.

·8· ·Are you comfortable with April 15th?

·9· · · · · · ·MS. HANSEN:· Yep.

10· · · · · · ·JUDGE JOHNSON:· Okay.· Then we will reduce

11· ·that to an order.· It will go out today, and we should

12· ·get this resolved.· Thank you all very much.

13· · · · · · ·MR. THOMSON:· Thank you, your Honor.

14· · · · · · ·MS. HANSEN:· Thank you.

15

16· · · · · · ·(The hearing concluded at 9:14 a.m.)
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·1· · · · · · · · · · ·C E R T I F I C A T E

·2· ·STATE OF UTAH· · · ·)

·3· ·COUNTY OF SALT LAKE )

·4· · · · THIS IS TO CERTIFY that the foregoing proceedings

·5· ·were taken before me, Teri Hansen Cronenwett, Certified

·6· ·Realtime Reporter, Registered Merit Reporter and Notary

·7· ·Public in and for the State of Utah.

·8· · · · That the proceedings were reported by me in

·9· ·Stenotype, and thereafter transcribed by computer under

10· ·my supervision, and that a full, true, and correct

11· ·transcription is set forth in the foregoing pages,

12· ·numbered 3 through 14 inclusive.

13· · · · I further certify that I am not of kin or otherwise

14· ·associated with any of the parties to said cause of

15· ·action, and that I am not interested in the event

16· ·thereof.

17· · · · WITNESS MY HAND and official seal at Salt Lake

18· ·City, Utah, this 24th day of March, 2016.
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· · · · · · · · · · · · ·Teri Hansen Cronenwett, CRR, RMR
21· · · · · · · · · · · ·License No. 91-109812-7801

22· ·My commission expires:
· · ·January 19, 2010
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 1   March 17, 2016                               9:00 a.m.

 2                     P R O C E E D I N G S

 3             JUDGE JOHNSON:  For the record today is

 4   Thursday, March 17th, 2016.  It's nine o'clock in the

 5   morning.  This is the date and time set for the informal

 6   hearing In the Matter of the Formal Complaint of Wyndee

 7   Hansen, doing business as Hole N' The Rock Incorporated,

 8   against Frontier Communications.  This is Docket No.

 9   15-041-02.

10             As I stated in the hearing notice, the purpose

11   of this hearing is to take evidence as to a reasonable

12   completion deadline that can then be reduced to an

13   order.  So I think we should just get right to that, and

14   I think that Frontier is likely the party that has the

15   information that will be helpful.

16             So if it's all right, Ms. Hansen, usually the

17   complainant goes first.  But I think I understand what

18   your complaint is, and I think that you don't probably

19   have a lot of information as to what would be a

20   reasonable deadline for completion.

21             MS. HANSEN:  I don't at this point.

22             JUDGE JOHNSON:  Okay.  So I thought we'd maybe

23   just turn it to Frontier and see where we get.

24             MS. HANSEN:  Thank you, your Honor.  My name

25   is George Thompson.  I am in-house counsel to Frontier.
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 1   With me today is Kirk Lee.  He's our regulatory and

 2   government affairs manager for, among other states,

 3   Utah.

 4             JUDGE JOHNSON:  Okay.

 5             MR. THOMSON:  In response to your question,

 6   your Honor, I think that Frontier believes that the

 7   pleading we filed on the 29th of February contains the

 8   timeline with a completion date of mid April that we're

 9   comfortable with signing up for, and that we have had a

10   number of things going on, including fiber splicing, as

11   recently as last night.

12             JUDGE JOHNSON:  Uh-huh.

13             MR. THOMSON:  At the site.  So we also have

14   the area general manager with us today and some of our

15   engineers, who can speak to details.  But I think we're

16   comfortable with the pleading we filed on the 29th and

17   the timeline we laid out therein.

18             JUDGE JOHNSON:  So you are proposing April

19   15th, basically one month?

20             MR. THOMSON:  Yes, your Honor.

21             JUDGE JOHNSON:  Not quite one month from

22   today.  So I am confused, and I think the commission

23   shares my confusion, as to why this project has taken so

24   long, particularly where in December you represented

25   January 31st as being a date certain for completion.
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 1             And there appears to be some inconsistencies

 2   in the record as to why you would make that

 3   representation in December when apparently the project

 4   hadn't been approved for budget, nothing had been

 5   ordered, and there have been complications with the

 6   things that you did order.  Can you please speak to

 7   that.

 8             MR. THOMSON:  Yes, your Honor.  I think the --

 9   the longest pole in the tent, if you will, was the, the

10   cabinet.  We found out that the cabinet had been a

11   manufacturer discontinued item when we ordered it, and

12   that was not clear in our procurement records or

13   anywhere internally that the manufacturer had

14   discontinued the cabinet.

15             So it's my understanding that that was the

16   primary holdup, that we had to order a number of --

17   well, we tried to order the original cabinet.  We got

18   the information the cabinet was not available.  It had

19   been manufacturer discontinued, and then we had to

20   redesign the project in order to accommodate the new

21   cabinet that we ordered.

22             JUDGE JOHNSON:  Well, let me rephrase my

23   question.  My question is that previously you

24   represented to the commission a date certain completion

25   deadline but apparently had not done what you needed to
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 1   do in order to make good on that representation.  My

 2   question is, have you done what you need to do to finish

 3   this project by April 15th?

 4             MR. THOMSON:  Yes.

 5             JUDGE JOHNSON:  Or are we going to be back

 6   here in a month?

 7             MR. THOMSON:  No, your Honor, we're not going

 8   to be back here in a month.  And we have the equipment

 9   in hand, and as I said, we have been doing work as late

10   as yesterday to get the job in hand.  We have all the

11   parts and all the equipment now and are proceeding with

12   the construction of the project.

13             JUDGE JOHNSON:  Okay.  So between now and

14   then, we're going to have spring break, which I imagine

15   will involve quite a bit of tourism to the Moab area and

16   quite a bit of business to Hole N' The Rock.  I need to

17   be assured that Ms. Hansen can process her credit card

18   transactions between now and the date that you have

19   planned to complete this.

20             MR. THOMSON:  It's my understanding, your

21   Honor, that Ms. Hansen's lines are up and operating.

22   It's not a case of where we're going to have to

23   interrupt her service, other than outside of business

24   hours, to do fiber splicing, which was done last night.

25             JUDGE JOHNSON:  Uh-huh.  Do you have service
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 1   today?  Do you know?

 2             MS. HANSEN:  I have service intermittently.

 3   That's been the problem for the last three years.

 4             JUDGE JOHNSON:  Uh-huh.

 5             MS. HANSEN:  There's been -- when these guys

 6   say anecdotal problem, static, blah, blah, blah.  I have

 7   service.  But it's so -- it breaks up.  Like, you will

 8   run a credit card, and then it will drop the line, and

 9   this was my PR nightmare.  One week it happened every

10   day, and we had hundreds of cards that were doubly

11   captured in the merchant because the phones kept

12   clicking.

13             There's static or -- you can't talk on the

14   phones.  I have been cut off from phone calls, and then

15   it will work five minutes later.  That's what I am

16   dealing with over the last three years is just a static

17   inconsistence.

18             JUDGE JOHNSON:  Right.  And I think that's the

19   commission's concern is that this seems to have been

20   going on for a long time.

21             MS. HANSEN:  Since 2013.

22             JUDGE JOHNSON:  And while the cable might be

23   the final solution --

24             MS. HANSEN:  Uh-huh.

25             JUDGE JOHNSON:  -- Ms. Hansen needs reliable
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 1   service consistently now.

 2             MS. HANSEN:  I believe in the informal, the

 3   previous two informal complaints, I submitted copies of

 4   e-mails I kept in records from 2013, 2014.  I have all

 5   the names of the guys that promised me, you will be

 6   hooked up to fiber tomorrow, tomorrow.  This is 2013,

 7   '14.  Why wasn't that cabinet ordered then?

 8             But they came out, and in the pictures they

 9   put out a new box back in 2014, said this is going to

10   be -- that old box is going to go away.  They ran a

11   cable, jerry rigged a cable and sent pictures.  It's

12   there.  It's been sitting there since 2014, some cable

13   going out at my south gate.

14             Kids can hang on it.  But I never got hooked

15   up.  But then I had stopped complaining and all that,

16   and so they never completed the hookup in 2014 when they

17   told you they would in 2014.

18             JUDGE JOHNSON:  We have had many broken

19   promises, there's no question about that, here.  My

20   question is, how is Frontier going to ensure that she

21   has reliable service from this date forward?

22             MR. THOMSON:  Your Honor, it's my

23   understanding that the cable that ran from Moab

24   previously had been a copper cable.  That was an old

25   cable, perhaps 40 years old, and had issues.  That cable
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 1   has been replaced, to my understanding, with fiber at

 2   this point.

 3             MR. HEALEY:  Correct.

 4             MR. THOMSON:  And so the -- those issues

 5   should be resolved, and the remaining work to be done is

 6   the work at Ms. Hansen's establishment.

 7             MS. HANSEN:  So why do I keep having -- why do

 8   I keep having -- as of three days ago, I am on a very

 9   important phone call and I get cut off.  And it's like I

10   literally -- it's my accountant I call him back.  He

11   says, "Are you still having those phone problems,

12   Wyndee?"  I mean, it's just like --

13             JUDGE JOHNSON:  So three days ago you were on

14   a call.

15             MS. HANSEN:  On a call and it got dropped.

16             JUDGE JOHNSON:  So if that problem has been

17   resolved with the new cable, why are we still having

18   service issues?

19             MR. THOMSON:  I can't answer that, your Honor.

20             JUDGE JOHNSON:  Is there anyone here who can?

21             VOICE:  I mean, I have been in contact

22   with you several times.

23             COURT REPORTER:  Tell me your name.

24             JUDGE JOHNSON:  Just a moment.  What's your

25   name?
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 1             MS. HANSEN:  Are you Mike?

 2             MR. GILES:  Mike Giles.

 3             MS. HANSEN:  Nice to meet you face-to-face.

 4   You have been very helpful.

 5             JUDGE JOHNSON:  It's Mike Giles.

 6             MR. GILES:  Yes.

 7             JUDGE JOHNSON:  Is that right?  Okay.

 8             MR. GILES:  I am the general manager for

 9   Frontier, so I have been in contact with Wyndee.  But

10   that's a question we haven't resolved yet.  And I don't

11   know if the new equipment will take care of that.

12   It's -- a lot depends on -- like cut-off calls can

13   happen for lots of different reasons.

14             MS. HANSEN:  Well, and it was my understanding

15   over the years from different people, not just you, but

16   other techs that told me that what has happened is,

17   yeah, they might have put that new copper line in.  But

18   from my place all the way to Monticello it's still in

19   the ground.  They have not taken it up.

20             And so we have a power outage.  Just like the

21   other night when I put, on January 31st, and I couldn't

22   even call out.  They have to go trace.  The techs have

23   to go trace where it is between my place and Monticello,

24   something in the lines down below.  It's not -- and that

25   was from the techs telling me this.
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 1             I do -- I know some of the techs there.  It's

 2   a small town personally, and they are just like -- they

 3   get tired of my phone calls too.  They see me in town,

 4   and they turn the other way.  I don't blame them.  This

 5   is like, Wyndee.  You know, it's gotten to be a joke.  I

 6   don't know what the problem is.  I just know there needs

 7   to be a fix.

 8             MR. GILES:  There will be backup power put in

 9   with this as well so that any of the power problems that

10   you have that shuts the lines down will be fixed as

11   well.

12             MS. HANSEN:  Well, that would be great.  You

13   know, I just want service.  I know I pay my bill every

14   month.  If I didn't, I wouldn't --

15             JUDGE JOHNSON:  You are entitled to service.

16   The rules and the statutes require that the company

17   provide reliable service as long as you are in their

18   service area.  And I think the record is clear that you

19   have not had particularly reliable service for quite

20   some time, and the commission is concerned about that.

21             And while I -- as I said before, fiber might

22   be the ultimate fix, you are required to provide

23   reliable service at all times, and so I need to know if

24   you have a plan for that.

25             MR. THOMSON:  Your Honor, to the best of our
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 1   knowledge, we believe that the project that's ongoing

 2   right now will resolve some of these issues.  Now, I

 3   don't know what inside wiring or equipment Ms. Hansen

 4   has in her establishment.

 5             So if the -- if this equipment is, for

 6   instance, a wireless phone unit that you can walk around

 7   the house with, that has a base station in the kitchen

 8   or wherever, intermittent power issues would affect that

 9   and would knock that call out.

10             JUDGE JOHNSON:  So is that what you have --

11             MS. HANSEN:  No.

12             JUDGE JOHNSON:  -- wireless phone?

13             MS. HANSEN:  When our lines -- I have got

14   three gift shops and a residence and everything.  They,

15   all the lines get -- when the power is out, it's out

16   even to my neighbors.  I got five houses behind me.  The

17   rest area is out.  Nobody out there can call during a

18   storm or nothing.

19             I mean, the rest area, I get people come in.

20   Because we are in a dead zone, absolutely no cell phone

21   service.  People come in a couple times a day.  They are

22   broke up down -- down up the road or they will come in,

23   "Do you have a land line?  I can't --" you know.  Or can

24   we dial in onto your Internet?  Because I have Internet

25   because of Hughes net.
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 1             Well, of course I can't give them that because

 2   I only get so many gigabytes, and I'm not going to share

 3   it with the public.  But I am just saying that I -- it's

 4   a dead zone.

 5             JUDGE JOHNSON:  For cell use.

 6             MS. HANSEN:  For cell.  Yeah.  You can't --

 7   when I have an outage, I have to jump in the truck.  I

 8   have to go to the top of Blue Hill, a mile and a half

 9   away, and call Frontier because I have no phones.

10             JUDGE JOHNSON:  Okay.  Are you satisfied with

11   an April 15th completion deadline, provided that the

12   company maintains your current service reliably in the

13   interim?

14             MS. HANSEN:  Okay.  I am -- you know what?  If

15   I -- they have had so many deadlines.

16             JUDGE JOHNSON:  I know.

17             MS. HANSEN:  I'm sorry.

18             JUDGE JOHNSON:  But here is the difference

19   with this one.  If the commission orders the company to

20   complete it by a certain time and the company fails to

21   do so, they are in violation of the order, which means

22   the commission can impose per-day penalties for the

23   violation.

24             At this point, until we reduce a deadline to

25   an order, the only remedy the commission can order is
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 1   service credits to you.  So that's why we are here

 2   today.  We are here to up the stakes and to put a

 3   deadline into an order, and if the company misses this

 4   deadline, they can be fined 500 to 2,000, I believe,

 5   dollars per day for missing the deadline.

 6             So that's why we are here.  We are getting

 7   serious, and the company has represented April 15th.

 8   Are you comfortable with April 15th?

 9             MS. HANSEN:  Yep.

10             JUDGE JOHNSON:  Okay.  Then we will reduce

11   that to an order.  It will go out today, and we should

12   get this resolved.  Thank you all very much.

13             MR. THOMSON:  Thank you, your Honor.

14             MS. HANSEN:  Thank you.

15

16             (The hearing concluded at 9:14 a.m.)
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 1                     C E R T I F I C A T E

 2   STATE OF UTAH       )

 3   COUNTY OF SALT LAKE )

 4        THIS IS TO CERTIFY that the foregoing proceedings

 5   were taken before me, Teri Hansen Cronenwett, Certified

 6   Realtime Reporter, Registered Merit Reporter and Notary

 7   Public in and for the State of Utah.

 8        That the proceedings were reported by me in

 9   Stenotype, and thereafter transcribed by computer under

10   my supervision, and that a full, true, and correct

11   transcription is set forth in the foregoing pages,

12   numbered 3 through 14 inclusive.

13        I further certify that I am not of kin or otherwise

14   associated with any of the parties to said cause of

15   action, and that I am not interested in the event

16   thereof.

17        WITNESS MY HAND and official seal at Salt Lake
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		66						LN		4		11		false		              11   recently as last night.				false

		67						LN		4		12		false		              12             JUDGE JOHNSON:  Uh-huh.				false

		68						LN		4		13		false		              13             MR. THOMSON:  At the site.  So we also have				false

		69						LN		4		14		false		              14   the area general manager with us today and some of our				false

		70						LN		4		15		false		              15   engineers, who can speak to details.  But I think we're				false

		71						LN		4		16		false		              16   comfortable with the pleading we filed on the 29th and				false

		72						LN		4		17		false		              17   the timeline we laid out therein.				false

		73						LN		4		18		false		              18             JUDGE JOHNSON:  So you are proposing April				false

		74						LN		4		19		false		              19   15th, basically one month?				false

		75						LN		4		20		false		              20             MR. THOMSON:  Yes, your Honor.				false

		76						LN		4		21		false		              21             JUDGE JOHNSON:  Not quite one month from				false

		77						LN		4		22		false		              22   today.  So I am confused, and I think the commission				false

		78						LN		4		23		false		              23   shares my confusion, as to why this project has taken so				false

		79						LN		4		24		false		              24   long, particularly where in December you represented				false

		80						LN		4		25		false		              25   January 31st as being a date certain for completion.				false

		81						PG		5		0		false		page 5				false

		82						LN		5		1		false		               1             And there appears to be some inconsistencies				false

		83						LN		5		2		false		               2   in the record as to why you would make that				false

		84						LN		5		3		false		               3   representation in December when apparently the project				false

		85						LN		5		4		false		               4   hadn't been approved for budget, nothing had been				false

		86						LN		5		5		false		               5   ordered, and there have been complications with the				false

		87						LN		5		6		false		               6   things that you did order.  Can you please speak to				false

		88						LN		5		7		false		               7   that.				false

		89						LN		5		8		false		               8             MR. THOMSON:  Yes, your Honor.  I think the --				false

		90						LN		5		9		false		               9   the longest pole in the tent, if you will, was the, the				false

		91						LN		5		10		false		              10   cabinet.  We found out that the cabinet had been a				false

		92						LN		5		11		false		              11   manufacturer discontinued item when we ordered it, and				false

		93						LN		5		12		false		              12   that was not clear in our procurement records or				false

		94						LN		5		13		false		              13   anywhere internally that the manufacturer had				false

		95						LN		5		14		false		              14   discontinued the cabinet.				false

		96						LN		5		15		false		              15             So it's my understanding that that was the				false

		97						LN		5		16		false		              16   primary holdup, that we had to order a number of --				false

		98						LN		5		17		false		              17   well, we tried to order the original cabinet.  We got				false

		99						LN		5		18		false		              18   the information the cabinet was not available.  It had				false

		100						LN		5		19		false		              19   been manufacturer discontinued, and then we had to				false

		101						LN		5		20		false		              20   redesign the project in order to accommodate the new				false

		102						LN		5		21		false		              21   cabinet that we ordered.				false

		103						LN		5		22		false		              22             JUDGE JOHNSON:  Well, let me rephrase my				false

		104						LN		5		23		false		              23   question.  My question is that previously you				false

		105						LN		5		24		false		              24   represented to the commission a date certain completion				false

		106						LN		5		25		false		              25   deadline but apparently had not done what you needed to				false

		107						PG		6		0		false		page 6				false

		108						LN		6		1		false		               1   do in order to make good on that representation.  My				false

		109						LN		6		2		false		               2   question is, have you done what you need to do to finish				false

		110						LN		6		3		false		               3   this project by April 15th?				false

		111						LN		6		4		false		               4             MR. THOMSON:  Yes.				false

		112						LN		6		5		false		               5             JUDGE JOHNSON:  Or are we going to be back				false

		113						LN		6		6		false		               6   here in a month?				false

		114						LN		6		7		false		               7             MR. THOMSON:  No, your Honor, we're not going				false

		115						LN		6		8		false		               8   to be back here in a month.  And we have the equipment				false

		116						LN		6		9		false		               9   in hand, and as I said, we have been doing work as late				false

		117						LN		6		10		false		              10   as yesterday to get the job in hand.  We have all the				false

		118						LN		6		11		false		              11   parts and all the equipment now and are proceeding with				false

		119						LN		6		12		false		              12   the construction of the project.				false

		120						LN		6		13		false		              13             JUDGE JOHNSON:  Okay.  So between now and				false

		121						LN		6		14		false		              14   then, we're going to have spring break, which I imagine				false

		122						LN		6		15		false		              15   will involve quite a bit of tourism to the Moab area and				false

		123						LN		6		16		false		              16   quite a bit of business to Hole N' The Rock.  I need to				false

		124						LN		6		17		false		              17   be assured that Ms. Hansen can process her credit card				false

		125						LN		6		18		false		              18   transactions between now and the date that you have				false

		126						LN		6		19		false		              19   planned to complete this.				false

		127						LN		6		20		false		              20             MR. THOMSON:  It's my understanding, your				false

		128						LN		6		21		false		              21   Honor, that Ms. Hansen's lines are up and operating.				false

		129						LN		6		22		false		              22   It's not a case of where we're going to have to				false

		130						LN		6		23		false		              23   interrupt her service, other than outside of business				false

		131						LN		6		24		false		              24   hours, to do fiber splicing, which was done last night.				false

		132						LN		6		25		false		              25             JUDGE JOHNSON:  Uh-huh.  Do you have service				false

		133						PG		7		0		false		page 7				false

		134						LN		7		1		false		               1   today?  Do you know?				false

		135						LN		7		2		false		               2             MS. HANSEN:  I have service intermittently.				false

		136						LN		7		3		false		               3   That's been the problem for the last three years.				false

		137						LN		7		4		false		               4             JUDGE JOHNSON:  Uh-huh.				false

		138						LN		7		5		false		               5             MS. HANSEN:  There's been -- when these guys				false

		139						LN		7		6		false		               6   say anecdotal problem, static, blah, blah, blah.  I have				false

		140						LN		7		7		false		               7   service.  But it's so -- it breaks up.  Like, you will				false

		141						LN		7		8		false		               8   run a credit card, and then it will drop the line, and				false

		142						LN		7		9		false		               9   this was my PR nightmare.  One week it happened every				false

		143						LN		7		10		false		              10   day, and we had hundreds of cards that were doubly				false

		144						LN		7		11		false		              11   captured in the merchant because the phones kept				false

		145						LN		7		12		false		              12   clicking.				false

		146						LN		7		13		false		              13             There's static or -- you can't talk on the				false

		147						LN		7		14		false		              14   phones.  I have been cut off from phone calls, and then				false

		148						LN		7		15		false		              15   it will work five minutes later.  That's what I am				false

		149						LN		7		16		false		              16   dealing with over the last three years is just a static				false

		150						LN		7		17		false		              17   inconsistence.				false

		151						LN		7		18		false		              18             JUDGE JOHNSON:  Right.  And I think that's the				false

		152						LN		7		19		false		              19   commission's concern is that this seems to have been				false

		153						LN		7		20		false		              20   going on for a long time.				false

		154						LN		7		21		false		              21             MS. HANSEN:  Since 2013.				false

		155						LN		7		22		false		              22             JUDGE JOHNSON:  And while the cable might be				false

		156						LN		7		23		false		              23   the final solution --				false

		157						LN		7		24		false		              24             MS. HANSEN:  Uh-huh.				false

		158						LN		7		25		false		              25             JUDGE JOHNSON:  -- Ms. Hansen needs reliable				false

		159						PG		8		0		false		page 8				false

		160						LN		8		1		false		               1   service consistently now.				false

		161						LN		8		2		false		               2             MS. HANSEN:  I believe in the informal, the				false

		162						LN		8		3		false		               3   previous two informal complaints, I submitted copies of				false

		163						LN		8		4		false		               4   e-mails I kept in records from 2013, 2014.  I have all				false

		164						LN		8		5		false		               5   the names of the guys that promised me, you will be				false

		165						LN		8		6		false		               6   hooked up to fiber tomorrow, tomorrow.  This is 2013,				false

		166						LN		8		7		false		               7   '14.  Why wasn't that cabinet ordered then?				false

		167						LN		8		8		false		               8             But they came out, and in the pictures they				false

		168						LN		8		9		false		               9   put out a new box back in 2014, said this is going to				false

		169						LN		8		10		false		              10   be -- that old box is going to go away.  They ran a				false

		170						LN		8		11		false		              11   cable, jerry rigged a cable and sent pictures.  It's				false

		171						LN		8		12		false		              12   there.  It's been sitting there since 2014, some cable				false

		172						LN		8		13		false		              13   going out at my south gate.				false

		173						LN		8		14		false		              14             Kids can hang on it.  But I never got hooked				false

		174						LN		8		15		false		              15   up.  But then I had stopped complaining and all that,				false

		175						LN		8		16		false		              16   and so they never completed the hookup in 2014 when they				false

		176						LN		8		17		false		              17   told you they would in 2014.				false

		177						LN		8		18		false		              18             JUDGE JOHNSON:  We have had many broken				false

		178						LN		8		19		false		              19   promises, there's no question about that, here.  My				false

		179						LN		8		20		false		              20   question is, how is Frontier going to ensure that she				false

		180						LN		8		21		false		              21   has reliable service from this date forward?				false

		181						LN		8		22		false		              22             MR. THOMSON:  Your Honor, it's my				false

		182						LN		8		23		false		              23   understanding that the cable that ran from Moab				false

		183						LN		8		24		false		              24   previously had been a copper cable.  That was an old				false

		184						LN		8		25		false		              25   cable, perhaps 40 years old, and had issues.  That cable				false

		185						PG		9		0		false		page 9				false

		186						LN		9		1		false		               1   has been replaced, to my understanding, with fiber at				false

		187						LN		9		2		false		               2   this point.				false

		188						LN		9		3		false		               3             MR. HEALEY:  Correct.				false

		189						LN		9		4		false		               4             MR. THOMSON:  And so the -- those issues				false

		190						LN		9		5		false		               5   should be resolved, and the remaining work to be done is				false

		191						LN		9		6		false		               6   the work at Ms. Hansen's establishment.				false

		192						LN		9		7		false		               7             MS. HANSEN:  So why do I keep having -- why do				false

		193						LN		9		8		false		               8   I keep having -- as of three days ago, I am on a very				false

		194						LN		9		9		false		               9   important phone call and I get cut off.  And it's like I				false

		195						LN		9		10		false		              10   literally -- it's my accountant I call him back.  He				false

		196						LN		9		11		false		              11   says, "Are you still having those phone problems,				false

		197						LN		9		12		false		              12   Wyndee?"  I mean, it's just like --				false

		198						LN		9		13		false		              13             JUDGE JOHNSON:  So three days ago you were on				false

		199						LN		9		14		false		              14   a call.				false

		200						LN		9		15		false		              15             MS. HANSEN:  On a call and it got dropped.				false

		201						LN		9		16		false		              16             JUDGE JOHNSON:  So if that problem has been				false

		202						LN		9		17		false		              17   resolved with the new cable, why are we still having				false

		203						LN		9		18		false		              18   service issues?				false

		204						LN		9		19		false		              19             MR. THOMSON:  I can't answer that, your Honor.				false

		205						LN		9		20		false		              20             JUDGE JOHNSON:  Is there anyone here who can?				false

		206						LN		9		21		false		              21             VOICE:  I mean, I have been in contact				false

		207						LN		9		22		false		              22   with you several times.				false

		208						LN		9		23		false		              23             COURT REPORTER:  Tell me your name.				false

		209						LN		9		24		false		              24             JUDGE JOHNSON:  Just a moment.  What's your				false

		210						LN		9		25		false		              25   name?				false
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		212						LN		10		1		false		               1             MS. HANSEN:  Are you Mike?				false

		213						LN		10		2		false		               2             MR. GILES:  Mike Giles.				false

		214						LN		10		3		false		               3             MS. HANSEN:  Nice to meet you face-to-face.				false

		215						LN		10		4		false		               4   You have been very helpful.				false

		216						LN		10		5		false		               5             JUDGE JOHNSON:  It's Mike Giles.				false

		217						LN		10		6		false		               6             MR. GILES:  Yes.				false

		218						LN		10		7		false		               7             JUDGE JOHNSON:  Is that right?  Okay.				false

		219						LN		10		8		false		               8             MR. GILES:  I am the general manager for				false

		220						LN		10		9		false		               9   Frontier, so I have been in contact with Wyndee.  But				false

		221						LN		10		10		false		              10   that's a question we haven't resolved yet.  And I don't				false

		222						LN		10		11		false		              11   know if the new equipment will take care of that.				false

		223						LN		10		12		false		              12   It's -- a lot depends on -- like cut-off calls can				false

		224						LN		10		13		false		              13   happen for lots of different reasons.				false

		225						LN		10		14		false		              14             MS. HANSEN:  Well, and it was my understanding				false

		226						LN		10		15		false		              15   over the years from different people, not just you, but				false

		227						LN		10		16		false		              16   other techs that told me that what has happened is,				false

		228						LN		10		17		false		              17   yeah, they might have put that new copper line in.  But				false

		229						LN		10		18		false		              18   from my place all the way to Monticello it's still in				false

		230						LN		10		19		false		              19   the ground.  They have not taken it up.				false

		231						LN		10		20		false		              20             And so we have a power outage.  Just like the				false

		232						LN		10		21		false		              21   other night when I put, on January 31st, and I couldn't				false

		233						LN		10		22		false		              22   even call out.  They have to go trace.  The techs have				false

		234						LN		10		23		false		              23   to go trace where it is between my place and Monticello,				false

		235						LN		10		24		false		              24   something in the lines down below.  It's not -- and that				false

		236						LN		10		25		false		              25   was from the techs telling me this.				false
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		238						LN		11		1		false		               1             I do -- I know some of the techs there.  It's				false

		239						LN		11		2		false		               2   a small town personally, and they are just like -- they				false

		240						LN		11		3		false		               3   get tired of my phone calls too.  They see me in town,				false

		241						LN		11		4		false		               4   and they turn the other way.  I don't blame them.  This				false

		242						LN		11		5		false		               5   is like, Wyndee.  You know, it's gotten to be a joke.  I				false

		243						LN		11		6		false		               6   don't know what the problem is.  I just know there needs				false

		244						LN		11		7		false		               7   to be a fix.				false

		245						LN		11		8		false		               8             MR. GILES:  There will be backup power put in				false

		246						LN		11		9		false		               9   with this as well so that any of the power problems that				false

		247						LN		11		10		false		              10   you have that shuts the lines down will be fixed as				false

		248						LN		11		11		false		              11   well.				false

		249						LN		11		12		false		              12             MS. HANSEN:  Well, that would be great.  You				false

		250						LN		11		13		false		              13   know, I just want service.  I know I pay my bill every				false

		251						LN		11		14		false		              14   month.  If I didn't, I wouldn't --				false

		252						LN		11		15		false		              15             JUDGE JOHNSON:  You are entitled to service.				false

		253						LN		11		16		false		              16   The rules and the statutes require that the company				false

		254						LN		11		17		false		              17   provide reliable service as long as you are in their				false

		255						LN		11		18		false		              18   service area.  And I think the record is clear that you				false

		256						LN		11		19		false		              19   have not had particularly reliable service for quite				false

		257						LN		11		20		false		              20   some time, and the commission is concerned about that.				false

		258						LN		11		21		false		              21             And while I -- as I said before, fiber might				false

		259						LN		11		22		false		              22   be the ultimate fix, you are required to provide				false

		260						LN		11		23		false		              23   reliable service at all times, and so I need to know if				false

		261						LN		11		24		false		              24   you have a plan for that.				false

		262						LN		11		25		false		              25             MR. THOMSON:  Your Honor, to the best of our				false

		263						PG		12		0		false		page 12				false

		264						LN		12		1		false		               1   knowledge, we believe that the project that's ongoing				false

		265						LN		12		2		false		               2   right now will resolve some of these issues.  Now, I				false

		266						LN		12		3		false		               3   don't know what inside wiring or equipment Ms. Hansen				false

		267						LN		12		4		false		               4   has in her establishment.				false

		268						LN		12		5		false		               5             So if the -- if this equipment is, for				false

		269						LN		12		6		false		               6   instance, a wireless phone unit that you can walk around				false

		270						LN		12		7		false		               7   the house with, that has a base station in the kitchen				false

		271						LN		12		8		false		               8   or wherever, intermittent power issues would affect that				false

		272						LN		12		9		false		               9   and would knock that call out.				false

		273						LN		12		10		false		              10             JUDGE JOHNSON:  So is that what you have --				false

		274						LN		12		11		false		              11             MS. HANSEN:  No.				false

		275						LN		12		12		false		              12             JUDGE JOHNSON:  -- wireless phone?				false

		276						LN		12		13		false		              13             MS. HANSEN:  When our lines -- I have got				false

		277						LN		12		14		false		              14   three gift shops and a residence and everything.  They,				false

		278						LN		12		15		false		              15   all the lines get -- when the power is out, it's out				false

		279						LN		12		16		false		              16   even to my neighbors.  I got five houses behind me.  The				false

		280						LN		12		17		false		              17   rest area is out.  Nobody out there can call during a				false

		281						LN		12		18		false		              18   storm or nothing.				false

		282						LN		12		19		false		              19             I mean, the rest area, I get people come in.				false

		283						LN		12		20		false		              20   Because we are in a dead zone, absolutely no cell phone				false

		284						LN		12		21		false		              21   service.  People come in a couple times a day.  They are				false

		285						LN		12		22		false		              22   broke up down -- down up the road or they will come in,				false

		286						LN		12		23		false		              23   "Do you have a land line?  I can't --" you know.  Or can				false

		287						LN		12		24		false		              24   we dial in onto your Internet?  Because I have Internet				false

		288						LN		12		25		false		              25   because of Hughes net.				false
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		290						LN		13		1		false		               1             Well, of course I can't give them that because				false

		291						LN		13		2		false		               2   I only get so many gigabytes, and I'm not going to share				false

		292						LN		13		3		false		               3   it with the public.  But I am just saying that I -- it's				false

		293						LN		13		4		false		               4   a dead zone.				false

		294						LN		13		5		false		               5             JUDGE JOHNSON:  For cell use.				false

		295						LN		13		6		false		               6             MS. HANSEN:  For cell.  Yeah.  You can't --				false

		296						LN		13		7		false		               7   when I have an outage, I have to jump in the truck.  I				false

		297						LN		13		8		false		               8   have to go to the top of Blue Hill, a mile and a half				false

		298						LN		13		9		false		               9   away, and call Frontier because I have no phones.				false

		299						LN		13		10		false		              10             JUDGE JOHNSON:  Okay.  Are you satisfied with				false

		300						LN		13		11		false		              11   an April 15th completion deadline, provided that the				false

		301						LN		13		12		false		              12   company maintains your current service reliably in the				false

		302						LN		13		13		false		              13   interim?				false

		303						LN		13		14		false		              14             MS. HANSEN:  Okay.  I am -- you know what?  If				false
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               1   March 17, 2016                               9:00 a.m.



               2                     P R O C E E D I N G S



               3             JUDGE JOHNSON:  For the record today is



               4   Thursday, March 17th, 2016.  It's nine o'clock in the



               5   morning.  This is the date and time set for the informal



               6   hearing In the Matter of the Formal Complaint of Wyndee



               7   Hansen, doing business as Hole N' The Rock Incorporated,



               8   against Frontier Communications.  This is Docket No.



               9   15-041-02.



              10             As I stated in the hearing notice, the purpose



              11   of this hearing is to take evidence as to a reasonable



              12   completion deadline that can then be reduced to an



              13   order.  So I think we should just get right to that, and



              14   I think that Frontier is likely the party that has the



              15   information that will be helpful.



              16             So if it's all right, Ms. Hansen, usually the



              17   complainant goes first.  But I think I understand what



              18   your complaint is, and I think that you don't probably



              19   have a lot of information as to what would be a



              20   reasonable deadline for completion.



              21             MS. HANSEN:  I don't at this point.



              22             JUDGE JOHNSON:  Okay.  So I thought we'd maybe



              23   just turn it to Frontier and see where we get.



              24             MS. HANSEN:  Thank you, your Honor.  My name



              25   is George Thompson.  I am in-house counsel to Frontier.
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               1   With me today is Kirk Lee.  He's our regulatory and



               2   government affairs manager for, among other states,



               3   Utah.



               4             JUDGE JOHNSON:  Okay.



               5             MR. THOMSON:  In response to your question,



               6   your Honor, I think that Frontier believes that the



               7   pleading we filed on the 29th of February contains the



               8   timeline with a completion date of mid April that we're



               9   comfortable with signing up for, and that we have had a



              10   number of things going on, including fiber splicing, as



              11   recently as last night.



              12             JUDGE JOHNSON:  Uh-huh.



              13             MR. THOMSON:  At the site.  So we also have



              14   the area general manager with us today and some of our



              15   engineers, who can speak to details.  But I think we're



              16   comfortable with the pleading we filed on the 29th and



              17   the timeline we laid out therein.



              18             JUDGE JOHNSON:  So you are proposing April



              19   15th, basically one month?



              20             MR. THOMSON:  Yes, your Honor.



              21             JUDGE JOHNSON:  Not quite one month from



              22   today.  So I am confused, and I think the commission



              23   shares my confusion, as to why this project has taken so



              24   long, particularly where in December you represented



              25   January 31st as being a date certain for completion.
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               1             And there appears to be some inconsistencies



               2   in the record as to why you would make that



               3   representation in December when apparently the project



               4   hadn't been approved for budget, nothing had been



               5   ordered, and there have been complications with the



               6   things that you did order.  Can you please speak to



               7   that.



               8             MR. THOMSON:  Yes, your Honor.  I think the --



               9   the longest pole in the tent, if you will, was the, the



              10   cabinet.  We found out that the cabinet had been a



              11   manufacturer discontinued item when we ordered it, and



              12   that was not clear in our procurement records or



              13   anywhere internally that the manufacturer had



              14   discontinued the cabinet.



              15             So it's my understanding that that was the



              16   primary holdup, that we had to order a number of --



              17   well, we tried to order the original cabinet.  We got



              18   the information the cabinet was not available.  It had



              19   been manufacturer discontinued, and then we had to



              20   redesign the project in order to accommodate the new



              21   cabinet that we ordered.



              22             JUDGE JOHNSON:  Well, let me rephrase my



              23   question.  My question is that previously you



              24   represented to the commission a date certain completion



              25   deadline but apparently had not done what you needed to
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               1   do in order to make good on that representation.  My



               2   question is, have you done what you need to do to finish



               3   this project by April 15th?



               4             MR. THOMSON:  Yes.



               5             JUDGE JOHNSON:  Or are we going to be back



               6   here in a month?



               7             MR. THOMSON:  No, your Honor, we're not going



               8   to be back here in a month.  And we have the equipment



               9   in hand, and as I said, we have been doing work as late



              10   as yesterday to get the job in hand.  We have all the



              11   parts and all the equipment now and are proceeding with



              12   the construction of the project.



              13             JUDGE JOHNSON:  Okay.  So between now and



              14   then, we're going to have spring break, which I imagine



              15   will involve quite a bit of tourism to the Moab area and



              16   quite a bit of business to Hole N' The Rock.  I need to



              17   be assured that Ms. Hansen can process her credit card



              18   transactions between now and the date that you have



              19   planned to complete this.



              20             MR. THOMSON:  It's my understanding, your



              21   Honor, that Ms. Hansen's lines are up and operating.



              22   It's not a case of where we're going to have to



              23   interrupt her service, other than outside of business



              24   hours, to do fiber splicing, which was done last night.



              25             JUDGE JOHNSON:  Uh-huh.  Do you have service
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               1   today?  Do you know?



               2             MS. HANSEN:  I have service intermittently.



               3   That's been the problem for the last three years.



               4             JUDGE JOHNSON:  Uh-huh.



               5             MS. HANSEN:  There's been -- when these guys



               6   say anecdotal problem, static, blah, blah, blah.  I have



               7   service.  But it's so -- it breaks up.  Like, you will



               8   run a credit card, and then it will drop the line, and



               9   this was my PR nightmare.  One week it happened every



              10   day, and we had hundreds of cards that were doubly



              11   captured in the merchant because the phones kept



              12   clicking.



              13             There's static or -- you can't talk on the



              14   phones.  I have been cut off from phone calls, and then



              15   it will work five minutes later.  That's what I am



              16   dealing with over the last three years is just a static



              17   inconsistence.



              18             JUDGE JOHNSON:  Right.  And I think that's the



              19   commission's concern is that this seems to have been



              20   going on for a long time.



              21             MS. HANSEN:  Since 2013.



              22             JUDGE JOHNSON:  And while the cable might be



              23   the final solution --



              24             MS. HANSEN:  Uh-huh.



              25             JUDGE JOHNSON:  -- Ms. Hansen needs reliable
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               1   service consistently now.



               2             MS. HANSEN:  I believe in the informal, the



               3   previous two informal complaints, I submitted copies of



               4   e-mails I kept in records from 2013, 2014.  I have all



               5   the names of the guys that promised me, you will be



               6   hooked up to fiber tomorrow, tomorrow.  This is 2013,



               7   '14.  Why wasn't that cabinet ordered then?



               8             But they came out, and in the pictures they



               9   put out a new box back in 2014, said this is going to



              10   be -- that old box is going to go away.  They ran a



              11   cable, jerry rigged a cable and sent pictures.  It's



              12   there.  It's been sitting there since 2014, some cable



              13   going out at my south gate.



              14             Kids can hang on it.  But I never got hooked



              15   up.  But then I had stopped complaining and all that,



              16   and so they never completed the hookup in 2014 when they



              17   told you they would in 2014.



              18             JUDGE JOHNSON:  We have had many broken



              19   promises, there's no question about that, here.  My



              20   question is, how is Frontier going to ensure that she



              21   has reliable service from this date forward?



              22             MR. THOMSON:  Your Honor, it's my



              23   understanding that the cable that ran from Moab



              24   previously had been a copper cable.  That was an old



              25   cable, perhaps 40 years old, and had issues.  That cable
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               1   has been replaced, to my understanding, with fiber at



               2   this point.



               3             MR. HEALEY:  Correct.



               4             MR. THOMSON:  And so the -- those issues



               5   should be resolved, and the remaining work to be done is



               6   the work at Ms. Hansen's establishment.



               7             MS. HANSEN:  So why do I keep having -- why do



               8   I keep having -- as of three days ago, I am on a very



               9   important phone call and I get cut off.  And it's like I



              10   literally -- it's my accountant I call him back.  He



              11   says, "Are you still having those phone problems,



              12   Wyndee?"  I mean, it's just like --



              13             JUDGE JOHNSON:  So three days ago you were on



              14   a call.



              15             MS. HANSEN:  On a call and it got dropped.



              16             JUDGE JOHNSON:  So if that problem has been



              17   resolved with the new cable, why are we still having



              18   service issues?



              19             MR. THOMSON:  I can't answer that, your Honor.



              20             JUDGE JOHNSON:  Is there anyone here who can?



              21             VOICE:  I mean, I have been in contact



              22   with you several times.



              23             COURT REPORTER:  Tell me your name.



              24             JUDGE JOHNSON:  Just a moment.  What's your



              25   name?
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               1             MS. HANSEN:  Are you Mike?



               2             MR. GILES:  Mike Giles.



               3             MS. HANSEN:  Nice to meet you face-to-face.



               4   You have been very helpful.



               5             JUDGE JOHNSON:  It's Mike Giles.



               6             MR. GILES:  Yes.



               7             JUDGE JOHNSON:  Is that right?  Okay.



               8             MR. GILES:  I am the general manager for



               9   Frontier, so I have been in contact with Wyndee.  But



              10   that's a question we haven't resolved yet.  And I don't



              11   know if the new equipment will take care of that.



              12   It's -- a lot depends on -- like cut-off calls can



              13   happen for lots of different reasons.



              14             MS. HANSEN:  Well, and it was my understanding



              15   over the years from different people, not just you, but



              16   other techs that told me that what has happened is,



              17   yeah, they might have put that new copper line in.  But



              18   from my place all the way to Monticello it's still in



              19   the ground.  They have not taken it up.



              20             And so we have a power outage.  Just like the



              21   other night when I put, on January 31st, and I couldn't



              22   even call out.  They have to go trace.  The techs have



              23   to go trace where it is between my place and Monticello,



              24   something in the lines down below.  It's not -- and that



              25   was from the techs telling me this.
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               1             I do -- I know some of the techs there.  It's



               2   a small town personally, and they are just like -- they



               3   get tired of my phone calls too.  They see me in town,



               4   and they turn the other way.  I don't blame them.  This



               5   is like, Wyndee.  You know, it's gotten to be a joke.  I



               6   don't know what the problem is.  I just know there needs



               7   to be a fix.



               8             MR. GILES:  There will be backup power put in



               9   with this as well so that any of the power problems that



              10   you have that shuts the lines down will be fixed as



              11   well.



              12             MS. HANSEN:  Well, that would be great.  You



              13   know, I just want service.  I know I pay my bill every



              14   month.  If I didn't, I wouldn't --



              15             JUDGE JOHNSON:  You are entitled to service.



              16   The rules and the statutes require that the company



              17   provide reliable service as long as you are in their



              18   service area.  And I think the record is clear that you



              19   have not had particularly reliable service for quite



              20   some time, and the commission is concerned about that.



              21             And while I -- as I said before, fiber might



              22   be the ultimate fix, you are required to provide



              23   reliable service at all times, and so I need to know if



              24   you have a plan for that.



              25             MR. THOMSON:  Your Honor, to the best of our
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               1   knowledge, we believe that the project that's ongoing



               2   right now will resolve some of these issues.  Now, I



               3   don't know what inside wiring or equipment Ms. Hansen



               4   has in her establishment.



               5             So if the -- if this equipment is, for



               6   instance, a wireless phone unit that you can walk around



               7   the house with, that has a base station in the kitchen



               8   or wherever, intermittent power issues would affect that



               9   and would knock that call out.



              10             JUDGE JOHNSON:  So is that what you have --



              11             MS. HANSEN:  No.



              12             JUDGE JOHNSON:  -- wireless phone?



              13             MS. HANSEN:  When our lines -- I have got



              14   three gift shops and a residence and everything.  They,



              15   all the lines get -- when the power is out, it's out



              16   even to my neighbors.  I got five houses behind me.  The



              17   rest area is out.  Nobody out there can call during a



              18   storm or nothing.



              19             I mean, the rest area, I get people come in.



              20   Because we are in a dead zone, absolutely no cell phone



              21   service.  People come in a couple times a day.  They are



              22   broke up down -- down up the road or they will come in,



              23   "Do you have a land line?  I can't --" you know.  Or can



              24   we dial in onto your Internet?  Because I have Internet



              25   because of Hughes net.
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               1             Well, of course I can't give them that because



               2   I only get so many gigabytes, and I'm not going to share



               3   it with the public.  But I am just saying that I -- it's



               4   a dead zone.



               5             JUDGE JOHNSON:  For cell use.



               6             MS. HANSEN:  For cell.  Yeah.  You can't --



               7   when I have an outage, I have to jump in the truck.  I



               8   have to go to the top of Blue Hill, a mile and a half



               9   away, and call Frontier because I have no phones.



              10             JUDGE JOHNSON:  Okay.  Are you satisfied with



              11   an April 15th completion deadline, provided that the



              12   company maintains your current service reliably in the



              13   interim?



              14             MS. HANSEN:  Okay.  I am -- you know what?  If



              15   I -- they have had so many deadlines.



              16             JUDGE JOHNSON:  I know.



              17             MS. HANSEN:  I'm sorry.



              18             JUDGE JOHNSON:  But here is the difference



              19   with this one.  If the commission orders the company to



              20   complete it by a certain time and the company fails to



              21   do so, they are in violation of the order, which means



              22   the commission can impose per-day penalties for the



              23   violation.



              24             At this point, until we reduce a deadline to



              25   an order, the only remedy the commission can order is
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               1   service credits to you.  So that's why we are here



               2   today.  We are here to up the stakes and to put a



               3   deadline into an order, and if the company misses this



               4   deadline, they can be fined 500 to 2,000, I believe,



               5   dollars per day for missing the deadline.



               6             So that's why we are here.  We are getting



               7   serious, and the company has represented April 15th.



               8   Are you comfortable with April 15th?



               9             MS. HANSEN:  Yep.



              10             JUDGE JOHNSON:  Okay.  Then we will reduce



              11   that to an order.  It will go out today, and we should



              12   get this resolved.  Thank you all very much.



              13             MR. THOMSON:  Thank you, your Honor.



              14             MS. HANSEN:  Thank you.



              15



              16             (The hearing concluded at 9:14 a.m.)
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